





IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA:

COMMORWEALTH
V. CHARGE TO JURY
LAWRENCE DEAN

If you find the accused, Lawrence Dean, gullty of
wounding H. E. Taylor or causing him bodily injury, by any means,
with malicious intent, as charged in the indictment, you will say
so and fix his punishment by confinement in the penitentiary for
a period of not less than one year nor more than ten years.

If you do not find him guilty of'malicious wounding or
malicious bodily injury, as charged in the indictment, but find
him guilty of unlawful wounding or unlawful bodily injury, as
therein charged, you will say so and fix his punishment by con-
finement in the penitentiary for a period of not less than one
year nor more than five years, or, in your discretion, by con-
finement in jall not exceedlng twelve months and by a fine not
exceeding five hundred dollars.

If you do not find him guilty of either of the felonies
aforesaid, bﬁt find him guilty of assault and battery, as further
charged in the indictment, then you will say so and fix his
punishment by confinement in jail for a period not exceedingbtwelve
months, or by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars, or by

both such fine and imprisonment.

If you find him not guilty, you will say so and no more.






Present: All of the Justices.

LAWRENCE DEAN AND FLOYD SHIFFLETT

QFPINION BY JUSTICE C. VERNON SPRATLEY,
-v- Record Ne. 3513, Richmond, Va,, April 18th,1949.

COMMORNWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY;
W. V. Pord, Judgs.,

At the April,1948,term of the Cirocuit Court of Rook-
ingham county, an imdictment wes returned against Lawresnce Desan
and Floyd Shifflett, which oharged that they, "on or about the
lst dey of May, 1948, in the County of Rockingham, 41d unlawfully
and feloniously combine, conspire and confederate together for
the purpose of committing an sssault and bodily injury upor H. E,
Taylor, with intent him, the said H. E. Taylor to maim, dis-
figure, disable or kill, and in pursuasnce of said conspiracy and
confederation, they, the said Lawrence Desn and Floyd Shifflett,
in and upon the said H, E, Teylor did meke an asseult and him the
sald H. B, Taylor unlawfully, felomiously end malieciously did
beat and wound with their fists and cause him bedily injury; to-

wit, a fractured nose, brulses and lacerations, with intent him,
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the said H. E. Taylor, then and there to maim, disfigure, dis-
able or kill, * * *,»

On June 17, 1948, the defendants demurred to the in-
diotment and moved to quash it on the ground that it included
charges of two offenses, one, conspiraey, a liadﬁlcanor, and the
other, nalioious maiming, & felony, which demurrer and motion the
court overruled. The defendants then moved to strike from the
indictment the language relating to a econspiracy, which motion
the court sustained., Thereupon the defendants were arreigned on
the indiotment as amended and each pleaded not guilty. A jury
was impaneled and sworn. The defendants then moved the court to
declare a mistrial because it had ruled upon the foregoing de-
murrer and motions when neither of the accused was present in
person. The court sustained their motions, declared a mistriel,
and discharged the Jury.

Thereupon the defendants demurred to the original in-
dletment on the grounds formerly assigned, ahd again moved to
strike from the indictment the language relating to & conspiraey.
The ocourt overruled both the demurrer and the motion. The de~
fendants were rearraigned and each pleaded not guilty. A new

jury was then impaneled, sworn, and charged as follows:

Qe
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*If you find the accused, Lawrence Dean, gullty of
wounding H. E. Taylor or causing him bedily injury, by any means,
with malieious intent, as charged in the indictment, you will
say so and fix his punishment by eonrinqnpnt in the penitentiary
for a period of not less than one yeer nor more than ten years.

*If you do not find him guilty of maliocious wounding or
maliclous bodily injury, aa charged in the indiotment, but find
him guilty of unlawful wounding or unlawful beodily injury, as
therein charged, you will say =0 and fix his punishment by con-
finement in the penitentiary for & period of not less than one
yeer nor more than five years, or, in your discretion, by con~
finement in jail not exceeding twelve months and by a fine not
exceeding rive hundred dollars.

"If you do not find him gullty of either of the
felonies eforesaid, but rind him guilty of assault and battery,
as further charged in the indiotment, then you will say so and
fix his punishment by confinement in jail for a period not ex-
ceeding twelve months or by a fins not exceeding five huhdrod
dollars, or by both such fine and imprisonment,

*If you find him not gullty, you will say so and no

more. "



u‘iun. Jsel sometwal  beaveos edd ball woy II”
|
(ensem s vd  viwlal ylilbod mid salewso 10 selysT & H palbauow

| :

Litw woy  dmemiolbal sdd al begusde sa Joednl swolellsm ddliw

|

@129y Aed Sadd ouam LOM TSOY mn.u sael Joa 10 boizeq & 20l

fummvimwunmamw |
|

~gog Y4 dassuletmng eld zil bas oe s LLlw ey  begieds miswedd

sbo asdd sesl Jom 10 bolieq 8 Tol yisidoedlmesyg sdd ol Soementy

|

. gon emit s ¢ bas edinom sviews pulbesoxs dom Lls) mb Imemesll

sild o teste 2o yiilus mld Batt dos ob wey X"

|
l
|
| Jeuedded bas JLusses Yo Y#llvp mld bull Iud bleserols sslacied
| Bue on eu Libw vyt ekt (dmemtelbal edr ui bepuais SHAIEY w

-xe don bolreg s 101 [lsi ol Fnemenlimoo wd Somemdelnvg sld xiY

| .dnagnostigmt bos ealy dowe fdod vd 16  erelich

3 on boe oe yss LLlw woy . Y3llug Som mid ball woy IIV

! s |
| -




A similar charge was given in the case of Floyd Shiff-
lett.

The defendants objJeoted to the oharge to the jury bde-
eéuue of its fallure to include a direotion to make a finding
as to the offense of oomspiracy. This objeetion the court over-
ruled, holding that the indiotment solely charged the commission
of 2 malicious asseult, and that the language whieh referred to
a conspiracy was but a matter of inducement or a part of the
felony charged. The trial then proceeded upon the theory that
the defendant was cherged with the felony oaly.

After hearing the evidence and instructions of the
oourt, the Jjury returned a verdiot finding "Lawrence Dean, guilty
of wounding H. E, Taylor with malicious intent, a=s chnrgnd in the
indiectment,” and fixed "his punishment by confinement in the
penitentiary for two years."” They further found "Floyd Shifflett,
guilty as charged invthe.indiotnpnt, of alding and abetting the
defendant, Lawrence Dean,"™ and fixed "his punishment by confine-
ment in the penitentiary for fifteen months."” The defendants
duly moved the court to set aside the verdiet and grant & new
trial for reasons assigned.

The court overruled the exoeptions and entered judgment

.‘.
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according to the verdiet,

We are asked to reverse the Jjudgment, and set aside
the verdict on the grounds, first, that the ;ourt erred in railinr
to sustein the demurrer to the indlotment and the motions to
quash and amend tho indiotment; second, that the court srred in
failing to strike the Jommonwealth's evidence, as insufficient
to establish Shifflett as an alder and abetter of Lawrence Dean,
or thet Dean was guilty of the offense charged; and, third, that
the court erred in admitting improper evidence as to the charactepr
and general reputation of the defendants,

An indlietment should state, with as much eertainty as
the nature of the oase will permit, the facts which comstitute
the orime intended to be oharged, so &8 to clearly apprise the
acoused of the orime with whioh he stands oharged, and thus
enable him to prepare hia defense thereto, and further that the
convietion or aoquittal may be pleaded 1a bar of any future
prosecution for the same offense.

As a general rule, a defendant cannot be charged in one
and the same count with two or more independent offenses, as suol,
aubjeot to different penalties. The reason of the rule is %o

prevent confusion, multipliostion of lssues, and prejudice teo

wle
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a defendant. Hatcher v. ggﬁgng!ggigg. 106 Va. 827, 55 8. E. 677;
Pine v. Commonweelth, 121 Va. 812, 93 8. E. 652; Digest of Va.

& W, Va. Reperts, (Miehie), Vol. 5, page 633, and cases cited;

k2 C. Jo 8., Indioctments and Inrornntions, page 1112, section 162,

We have many times held that indictments for statutory

- offenses should be couched in the language of the statute. Vir-

ginia Code, 1942, (Michie), sesotion 4402, sometimes called the
maiming eot, is purely statutery. It is not requisite to chayge

in an indictment for a violastion of that section amy more than

' is neceasary to acourately and adequately charge the felony.

In 11 Am. Jur., Conspirasy, secotion 9, page 549, it is
said:

"The rule appears to be well settled in most Juris-

diotions that a conspirasy to commit e orime is not merged in the

l

comminssion of the completed offenmse, but is a distinet offense
of itself and punishable as such, notwithstanding 1ts object, the
Ilttllptté erime, has been acocomplished. This is the universal
rule where the ecomspiraey and the exscuted aet are orimes of
equal grade, and also seems to be generally true now regardleas
of whether the consplirascy or its objeet 1s regarded as the same
\srsdc of offense or the one is regarded as of a higher grade than

b=
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the other, as where one is a felony and the other a misdemeanor,
Some of the cases have stated--mostly by way of dictum--that
where a conspiracy is a misdemeanor end its objeet, the sub-
stantive orime, a felony, the gonspiracy would merge in the sub-
stantive orime; but this déctrino has seldom been actually

applied and seems now to have been generally abandoned.”

The minority rule was followed im Anthony v. Common-
wealth, 88 Va. 847, 850, 14 8. E. 284. There it was saild:

"But although the ocomnspiracy is a complete offence by
itself before it is carried into effect, yet if the aet con-
spired to be done be a felony, and it is carried into effect,
and the felony is committed, the conapiracy is merged in the
felony, and the indictment should be for the felony, and not
for the conspiracy.” (Citing cases,)

In State v, Wismen, 93 W. Va. 183, 116 S. E. 698, an
indictment in almost the ldentiocal lamnguage of the one before us
was held good upon demurrer, the West Virginia court holding
that the leaser corime of comspiracy therein charged was in-
cluded in the greater orime of meliclous assault,

The indiectment before us, socording to the contention
of the Commonwealth, merely sets out the preliminary stages of

.
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the felony oharged. It is contended that the allegations as to

& oonspiracy constitute omly a part of the genersl scheme of
whieh the orime charged wes & part. Such allegations were un-
neceéssary to charge a felony under the maiming set, Code, section
4402, end they can be regearded as surplusage, Inasmuoh as they
cause the averments of the indictment to border upon duplicity,
the court might haio properly struck out the langusge releting

to a conspiraey. Virginie Code, 1942, (Michie), section 4878,
Without the obJoetionhblo allegations, a felony was charged. That
was the only ecrime for whieh the Commonwealth sought conviotion,

and the only crime charged which the defendants were required to

defend, For these reasons, we find no prejudicial error in the

rulings of the trial court upon the demurrer and motion to strike.
This brings us to the evidence which was in sharp oon-
filet. In view of the conclusion which we have resched requiring

2 new trial, we shall state only so much as is necessary to a

 proper understanding of the remaining questions.

H. E. Taylor is an undercover investigator of the

' Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Board. He was asasigned to

work in the area near Elkton, Virginia, for the purpose of ob-
taining information againat violators of the A, B. C. Act, He

e
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was brought into contact with John Crawford, a suspected violator
of the luw; who agreed to aet‘as an informer of viclation by
others. Taylor agreed te pay Grtvrori $2 for eaoh violator he
helped to cateh. The defendants, Dean and Shifflett, were om a
list of suspeseted violators furnished to Taylor by fellow ortieora;
On Friday, April 30th, Taylor met Crawford and mesde an
arrangement, whereby Orawford would take Teylor to Desn and Shiff-
lett on the following night for the purpose of pﬁrohasing liquer
| from the latter, On Saturday morning, May lst, Crawford went to
Elkton and saw both Dean and Shifflett, He said he told them that
Taylor wes an A, B, C. officer, and that he was going to bring
|
them in to buy whiskey. Crawford, however, did not inform Taylor
that he hed done this., On Saturdsy night, Crawford and Taylor
came to Elkton and met Dean., Dean, wha# asked for whiskey, said
'he had none; but could probably get some up the road. They enter-
ed a car driven by Harry Lam, and drove to Ferry Balley's servioce
' station. Crawford and Teylor sat im the baok seat and Dean on the
nsoat with the driver. Vhen they arrived at Bailey's, Fleoyd Shiff-
1ilﬂt was there on & shopping trip. Taylor got out snd walked
over and stood against the side of the atation, Dean and Shiff-

lett, who had known each other for sometime, began to wrestle.

-9-
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In the course of the wrestling matoh, Shifflett was pushed or
shoved into Taylor,
Witnesses for the Commonwealth said that Shifflett

grabbed Teylor around the hips and Taylor attempted to free him-

' self. Dean then grabbed Taylor and began striking him, with

Taylor fighting back. Taylor was thrown to the ground by Dean
and was severely beaten about the face and head.
Witnesses for the defense testified that Dean and Shirff-

lett, who hed known sach other for sometime, became engeged in a

friendly wrestling mateh; that after they quit wrestling Tayler

grabbed Shifflett from behind and began wrestling with him; and
Dean said the scufflimg ought to be stopped because Shifflett had
a bad ankle. Dean then stepped between Shifflett and Taylor to
separate thtnf One of the witnesses said Tayler used the words
"gson of a biteh,” and struck Dean with his fist. Dean retaliated
and the two men began to fight, with the result stated.

Shifflett denied that he hit Taylor or sided and sbetted

Dean during the fight, He sald that he tried t¢o separate Dean

end Taylor and to bring peece between them. Both defendants

denied that Crewford had revealed the identity of Taylor te
them or either of them prior to the fight. They said that they

olﬂ-
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d14 not know he was an officer of the A. B, C. Board., The de~-

fendents did not put thelr respective charscters and genmsral

reputations in issue.

Without passing upon its weight, we are of opinion that,

' considered im the light of sll the clrcumstances, the evidence

was sufficlient to present a Jury question.

The court permitted the Commonwealth's attorney, over
the objection of the defendants, to ask Shirfflett, on eoross-
examination, whether he had been comvioted of petit lareeny in a
triel juatieo’oourt in February, 1946. Shirflett denled suoh a
oonviction. No evidence was presented to contradict him. The
Jury was not told for what purposs the guestion was asked.

Shifflett was also asked whether he had been convicted
of assault end battery in the trial Justice court of Rookingham
county in October, 1940, and again of the same character of
offense in May, 1945. He replied in the affirmative, and under-
took to explain tho\roason for one of the convietions,

The Commonwealth's attorney was allowed, on oross-ex-
amination, t0 ask Dean whether or not he had been recently con-
vieted on an assault charge. When the defendant answered in the
affirmative, the Commonwealth's attormey then asked him, "That ias

-5 -
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the usual way you settle your affairs, isa't it?" To this
Dean replied "No."

"No rule is bott-f settled in Virginia then the rule
that svidence of bad general reputetion camnot, in the absence
of statute, be offered by the Commoawsalth, unless tgo accused
has put suoch charscter in issue by first offering evidence of
his good gemeral reputation.” Jones v. LaCrosse, 180 Va. 40§,
410, 23 S B. 24, 142, walker v. Commonwealth, 1 Leigh (28 Va.)
574; Culbertson v. Commonwealth, 137 Va. 752, 119 5. E. 87;
Hareld v. Commonweslth, 1lA7 Va. 617, 136 S. E. 658; Digest of
Va. and W. Va. Reports, (Michie), Vol., 3, Crimimal Law, section
101, and cases cited.

It 18 equally well settled that, under uiﬁilar eir-
cumstances, it is error to edmit in evidence against an accused
another specific offense by him, wholly unoonnected with that
for whioch he is put on triel. Evidence of the prior offenses of

assault and battery by the defendants upon other persons, on

- different days at Aifferent places, was not admissible as com-

ing within aay exception to the rule. (Colvim v. Commonwesalth,
147 Va. 663. 669. 137 8. £, b?éi M Ve Gommnaltg. 149 Va,
383, 391, 140 S. E. 133.
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In Colvin v. Commonwealth, supra, this was said by

Judge Burks:

"Generally, it is mot competent, on the trial of a
oriminal ocase, for the Commonwealth to offer testimony of a
prior, independent orime, Such testimony is not within the
pleadings, and would be an unfair surprise and prejudiocisl to the
accused, who does not come to the trial prepared to vindicate
every act of his past life. But the exception to the rule is
as well eszstablished as the rule itself, that suech testimony is
admissible, where it shows motive, intent or guilty knowledge,
or is conneeted with ér leads up to the offense for which the
accused is on trial, 1 Wig. Ev., section 396."

In Blend v. Commonwealth, 177 Va. 819, 13 8. E. 24,
317, the defendant was tried for the larceny of an automobile,
Testimony was admitted to prove that he had been convigted some
five years before of stealing amother automoblle. It was held
that the former convietion was a separate and distinot crime
from that charged snd could not be properly and legally proven to

show guilt in the later case.

In gmbﬂll Ve Ggmnwgaltg. 176 Ye. 56‘1 5“, 11 8. E.

| 24, 577, the late Mr. Justice Browning, dealing with a similar

«lP=
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question, sald:
"In contradistinction one may be guilty of the commission
of a orime at one time, and at a subsequent time be as white as

the driven snow. Repentance and reform are pillars of the

. structure of salvation upon whieh it is built.”

It was elsarly improper, under the circumstances, to
allow the witnesses to de questioned as to specific offenses
wholly unconnected and unrelated to the offense for which they

were on trial, The questions asked and the evidencs adduced had

the effeot of easting an innuende unfaverable to them into the

Jury box. The defendants were required only to meet the specifis
offense with which they were charged. The rule is intended te
restrain proof within the limits of the charge against a defendant,
and to prevent his conviction for meee-pises one offense because,
perhaps, he has committed others. It is against the tradition

of our law to oonviet & man of a specific orime merely because

he is generally regarded as a man of bad reputstion. The poliey

of excluding such evidensce tends to prevent comnfusion of isasues,

. unfalr surprise, and undue prejudice. 1 Wigmore, Evidence, (3rd Ed.)

section 57.
For an interesting discussion of the history, purpose,

=lh=-
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end tradition of the general rule that the State may not show a
defendant's prior trouble with the law, specifie criminal acts,
or il1] name among his neighbors, exoept when the prior crime

is an element of the later offense, or diseloses a course of

fraudulent conduet to eatablish fraudulent intent, see the

recent case of Michelson v. U. 8., 69 8. Ct, Rep., 213, Ue 8o
. L. Ed. .

Por the foregoing reasons the Judgment of the trial
court is reversed, the verdiet of the jury set aside, and this
cause remanded for a new trial in accordance with the views

herein expressed,

Reversed and remended.
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I, Wade Zetty, did on the 1l3th day oi rebruary 149 have

2
& warrsnt Issuec in Rockiigham County, Virginia for Lawrernce Dean
charging him with naving comnitted a simple assault uron me. 1
do hereby relecse and dischiarge the said Lawrence Dean from any
end =11 responsibility =nd 1llability ror said alleged assault,

and do respectfully request that said warrant be dismissed,

Givern under my hand this 19th day of PFebruary 1949,

2%,
Witnesses: = 4 3
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STATE OF VII}GIN IA ¥ To-Wit: e
COUNTY OF_l.- | i IO, A :
{/
TO ANY SHERIFF OR POLICE OFFICER:
Whereas, /L { S ZCT :
/'] f NJ}-/ “?‘l‘ g r— X
has this day made complaint and information on oath before me, _4'_" LL W\ ETE ('N/ )‘
J ame
= » - ‘.'!
. UL VTr A, of the said County, that

/ . " (Title) { I ﬁ~ 7

did on the I d"m' day of f e, 19%_ Unlawfully m Wﬁ

/ - L f F F’L
Wy Lot H (el et , A ey Ly 2 e,
; 2 E 77 :
£ ¥ ;W F . 'y, o { 7/ ' e | — \‘ 4 .
= 3 < s Bl iy A VR = T £ J Y o
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nL v i J 2 . 4 ¥
o e i _’:L' :___t;: (/ il EL7) WiVt N s 7"“ 2 - o

These are, therefore, to command you, in the name of the Commonwealth, to apprehend and bring before the
Trial Justice Court of the said County, the body (bodies) of the above accused, to answer the said complaint and

to be further dealt with according to law. And you are also directed to summon

color _______ Address AN i [E]
color _____ Address O
color — Address M
color ____ Address |
color _____ Address e, o BN 0

as witnesses.

Given under my hand and seal, this_LJ._{j_dax of ¥ . L st 2 SRS o £

T 8

1 ; “
P Ty i |
M}Muﬁ = L (Seal)
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STATE OF VIRGINIA—COUNTY OF.

! 2 3 Justice of the Peace

as his smt.,ﬂ-. have this day
i

o =3 7 il

to-wit:

in and for the County aforesaid, State of Virginia, do certify

eac.

ch acknowledged themselves indebted
L

Dollars

to the Commonwealth of Virginia in the sum of

s to the use of the Commonwealth to

(#&ﬁe—.—), to be made and levied of their respective goods and chattels, lands, and teneme
be rendered, yet upon this condition: That the sail;i.iﬂdén::t,&.ﬂ@ﬁq shall appear before the T:.ialcflr::tiitce Court
- / o ¥
& __ County, 05 #e ____Mday OLM - 19#?.,
, Virginia,

of ] [
at __H M., at e Ve 5 2 B 2D and at any time or times to which the proceedings may be continued
or further heard, and before any court théreafter having

or holding any proceedings in connection with the charge in this warrant, to answer
for the offense with which he is charged, and shall not depart thence without the leave of said court, the said obligation to remain in full force

and effect until the charge is finally disposed of or until it is declared void by order of a competent court; and upon the further condition that
the said shall keep the peace and be of good behavior for a period of : days
from the date hereof.

Given under my hand, this_'__m. day QL@- 5 19&2.
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Witness Subpoena

Commonwealth of Virginia;
County of Rockingham, to-wit:
To the Sheriff of said County, Greeting:

You are hereby commanded, in the name of the Commonwealth of Virginia to summonn

Wade Zetty
Lawrenee Dean

P

to appear before the Trial Justice Court of said County, sitting at_ Harrisonburg, Virginia ~ . .

in said County, on__=L1th  day of July , 1949 | at the hour of ____3:00 P M, s
of that day to give evidence in behalf ofmmwmwmmucial
date hag bees changed to July 11, 1949 at 3B g
in the pending case of _Comigh - R Yy - .
& gee Je Bl 1] wigl 9%

v. _ Liwrence iPean

Given under my hand this______24th  day of June /& &

r“!n.&p "

<



Not finding Wade Zetty nor any member of
his family above the age of 16 years at his usual
place of abode, executed July 5, 1949, by posting
and leaving posted a true copy of the within
summons on the front door of the said Wade Zetty's

usual place of abode. 2627 ‘
M A@Z »Dep
for Sam H,

Callender, S.R.C

i
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EXECUTEDG~&4-4#TN THE COUNTY OF
ROCKINGHAM BY DELIVERING A TRUE

COPY OF THEL WITHIN .gfesmeeme.
TOqzaa24&4‘«@514£¥84kté:=__L__
IN 'PERSON.

a)
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Witness Subpoena

Commonwealth of Virginia:
County of Rockingham, to-wit:
To the Sheriff of said County, Greeting:

You are hereby commanded, in the name of the Commonwealth of Virginia to summon

Wade Zetty 2 P

e N W > -

Lawrence Dean

3 —— —— A bt Sy

to appear before the Trial Justice Court of said County, sitting at___Harrisonburg, Virginia
in said County, on__24th day of ___May 1942, at the hour of _2:00 B M,
of thﬁta. g;é)s to give evidence in behalf of _Com'th (and to remind Lawrence Dean that this is his trial

in the pending case of __Com'th e i i e E &

v.w

r A i 4
Given under my hand this___ 218t day of ,m\
(2
sl

Y- Clark

p s 7
4




W N«\Aﬁ .stlnv
| - A=l
B ) «A4 Zo0

: 2
a
3 S : 1
O
Z e m
8 £
S B o o,
gl o | & 1
o A 17} o
i A 3 i o d
-8 m = 3]
= g S gl & |
gl = )
A8 =
V_ i

H’Nsltw w

Kithin m.mggob to. vx?bkﬁrm&\.ﬁ%wﬂﬂ A ,

nlm\bumwmob%Q = Hk‘ﬁkﬁh
. \n%bxﬁ%&e\uﬁt



Witness Subpoena

Commonwealth of Virginia:
County of Rockingham, to-wit:
To the Sheriff of said County, Greeting:

You are hereby commanded, in the name of the Commenwealth of Virginia to summon

Joha Bammer, o/o Hendous Sevise Biatios, b Gresel
Baywood Leake CBf Polive Elktés, Va.' ——3b
-_R. B. Puinter, ; per, Elcton, Ya. 3% :
to appear before the Trial Justice Court of said County, sitting at_ H&IX isonburg, Virginim
in said County, on seti day of "Wy " 1949 atthehourof 800 P@, .

of that day to give evidence in behalf of_Gom'th W p—

Y

Lawrinoe Doen aid Floyd snirrless

in the pending case of

v, JAwrsnse Doan andWieyd snfvriess -
Given under my hand this ~4830d day of. (19, —







Witness Subpoena

Commonwealth of Virginia:
County of Rockingham, to-wit:
. To the Sheriff of said County, Greeting:

You are hereby commanded, in the name of the Commonwealth of Virginia to summon

VYA, 36 |

_B. % Painter, Police Officer Eliktonm, Va, b .

to appear before the Trial Justice Court of said County, sitting at_ Jarrisonburg, Virginia
in said County, on_nn____day of___dwly 19 48 at the hour of _ BFN

of that day to give evidence in behalf of__COR*GR Mm

June 27, 1949 at 2P to
' duly 11, 1948 ot S~
in the pending case of _COmM*Eh .

v. _lawrence Dean and Floyd Shifflett

Given under my hand this. B4kh Hny of o 19







INSTRUCTIOR No. 1

The Court instructs the jury that the burden
resting upon the Commonwealth to prove the accused guilty
beyond all reasonable doubt of an offense and every
material element thereof, charged against the accused, -
does not mean that it is necessary for the Commonwealth
to establish the gullt of the accused to an absolute
certainty or beyond all possibility of mistake or to do

more than satisfy the jury that upon the evidence as a
whole the accused is guilty thereof beyond all reasonable
doubt,

(Signed by
the Court's
initials).
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185

(The instructions copied on Pages 165 to and through
166 were evidently given; they were not marked as refused,

as were the others here copied).
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INSTRUCTION No. 1

The Court instructs the jury that the burden
resting upon the Commonwealth to prove the accused guilty
beyond all reasonable doubt of an offense and every
meterial element thereof, charged against the accused,
does not mean that it is necessary for the Commonwealth
to establish the guilt of the accused to an absolute
certainty or beyond all possibility of mistake or to do

more than satisfy the jury that upon the evidence as a
whole the accused is guilty thereof beyond all reasonable
doubt.

(Signed by
the Court's
initials).

185

(The instructions copied on Pages 155 to and through
166 were evidently given; they were not marked as refused,

as were the others here copied).
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INSTRUCTION NO.__2

The Court instructs the jury that under the indictment
in this case, if warranted by the evidence, you may find one of
the four following verdiects, to-wit: (1) Malieious wounding or
injury; (2) Unlawful wounding or injury; (3) Assault and
battery; (4) Not guilty.

You are further instructed that malicious wounding or
injury is committed when one person unlawfully, wilfully,
feloniously and maliciously wounds or ceuses bodily injury
to another, intending thereby either to maim, disfigure, disable
or kill such other, Unlawful wounding is committed when one
person wounds or causes bodily injury to another unlaw-
fully, wilfully, and feloniously, but not maliciously, intending
thereby either to maim, disfigure, disable or kill such other.
Assault and battery is any physical injury done to another in

an angry, rude or insolent manner,

(Signed b{ the Court's
initials).
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INSTRUCTION NO.__ 3

The Court instructs the jury that malice as
applied to this case is used in a technical sense. It
may be either express or implied., It includes not only
anger, hatred and revenge, but every unlawful and un-
Justifiable‘motive. It may be inferred or implied from
any deliberate and cruel act done without reasonsble
provocation or excuse., Malice in law is every evil de-
sign in general; and by it is meant that the act has been
attended with such circumstances as are ordinarily symp-
toms of a wicked, depraved and malignant spirit, and carries
with them the plain indications of a heart regardless of
social duty, and fatally bent upon miséhiefo

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. 4

The Court instructs the jury that the malicious
intent may be proved like any other fact, by either
direct or circumstantial evidence or by a combination
of both; and if facts, surrounding circumstances and con~
ditions are proven which warrant and justify an inference
therefrom of the existence of such malicious intent, the

same may be inferred therefrom.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. S

The Court ingpructs the Jjury that one who is
present at the scene of a crime aiding and abetting or
pérticipating therein is guilty as a principal in such
crime. +The Court further tells the Jury that any encourage-
ment or act of assistance consﬁitutés participation in
such crime,

The Court further instructs the jury that 1if you
believe from the evidence beyond a reasonable doubt that
the prisoner, Lawrence Dean, aided and abétted by Fioyd
Shifflett, assaulted H.E.Taylor, then you shall find the
prisoners, Lawrence Dean and Floyd Shifflett, guilty, and
fix their punishment in accordance with the charge to the

jury in this case.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. 6

The Court instructs the jury that the credibility
of witnesses i1s a question exclusively for the jury; and
the law is that, where a number of witnesses testify
directly opposite to each other, the jury is not bound to
regard the number of witnesses who may have testified on
one side as against the number who testified on the other
slde; the jury have the right to determine from the appear-
ance of the witnesses on the stand, their manner of testi=
fying, the reasonableness and consistency of their tese
timony, their apparent candor and fairness, their apparent
intelligence or lack of intelligence, the interest of the
witness in the result of the trial, if any appear, and
from all other surrounding circumstances appearing on the
trial, determine which witnesses are more worthy of credit
and what is the relative weight of any such testimony; and
to give credit accordingly.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).
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INSTRUCTION No. B.

The Court instructs the jury that before you
may find the defendants, Floyd Shifflett and Lawrence
Dean,or either of them, guilty of malicious assault or
felonious assault, you must believe from the evidence
beyond a reasonable doubt that they, or one of them,
caused bodily injury to H.E.Taylor with the intent to
maim, disfigure, disable or kill the said H.E.Taylor.
In other words, to find either of the derendahts guilty
of either of these two charges against them, the jury
must believe that they or the one, if either, which the
jury may find guilty, intended to permanently injure the
said Taylor, and without such intent they can be guilty

only of simple assault.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTROCTION No, C .

The Court instructs the jury that any tussle
which the defendant, Floyd Shifflett, may have had with
H.E.Taylor did not, of itself, constitute an assault,
and unless the jury believes from the evidence, beyond a
reasonable doubt, that defendént Floyd Shifflett aided
and abetted the defendant Dean in committing an assault

unon the said H.E.Taylor, they shall find the defendant,
Floyd Shifflett, not guilty.

(Signed by the

Court's initials).
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INSTRUCTION NO. D.

The Court instructs the jury that if they
believe from the evidence in this case that H.E.Taylor
was the aggressor and that Lawrence Dean reasonably
apprehended bodlly harm, then he had the right to use such
force as was necessary to protect himself, and 1f you be-
lieve that the sald Dean used Qnly such force as he

reasonably deemed necessary to orotect himself, then you

should find him not guilty.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO, E,.

The Court instructs the Jury that the law presumes
_every person charged with crime to be innocent until his
guilt is established beyond a reasonable doubt by the
Commonwealth, and this presumption of innocence goes with
the prisoner through the entire case and applies to every
stage thereof; and they are instructed that although they
might have telieved, when the Commonwealth closed i1ts case,
that the defendant Lawrence Dean and/or the defendant Floyd
Shifflett were guilty beyond reasonable doubt, yet if after
hearing the evidence introduced on behalf of the prisoners,
they bear a reasonable doubt as to the guilt of the defende
ant Dean or the defendant Shifflett, on the whole case or as
to any fact or circumstance essential to prove the charge
made agalnst them in the indictment, it 1s thelir duty to
give the accused Dean and the accused Shifflett the benefit
of the doubt and fin&?g? either of them, as to whom they

have a reasonable doubt, not guilty.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).
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INSTRUCTION NO. F.

The Court instructs the Jjury that "intent" is
one of the essential elements of the crime charged in
the indictment, and the Court tells you that the burden
of proof to prove "intent" is upon the Commonwealth,

and that the same must be proved beyond all reasonable

doubt., It must not be inferred from circum:=tances in~
consistent with the guilt of the aceccused, but must be
inferred from circumstances inconsistent with the inng-

cence of the accusede

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO.G,.

The Court instructs the jury that malice
is one of the elements of malicious assult and that
the burden is upon the Commonwealth to prove malice
beyond a reasonable doubt, in order to convict either

of the defendants of malicious assault.

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. Z. 1

The Court instructs the jury that the ac-
cused Dean and Shifflett are on trial only for the
offence alleged againét them in the indictment, and
the jury are instructed that they are not at liberty
to consider evidence of other law violations in con=-
sidering the gulilt or imnnocence of the accused in this

case, but may only be considered in connection with their

credibility as witness & as to their intent

(Marked) Refused

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. Z.

The Court instructs the jury that the accused
Dean and Shifflett are on trial only for the offence
-alleged against them in the indictment, and the jury
are instructed that they are not at liberty to cone-
sider evidence of other law violations in considering

the guilt or innocence of the accused in this case.

(Marked) refused

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






INSTRUCTION NO. 4

—

The Court instructs the jury that if you
believe from the evidence in this case that H.E.
Taylor was the aggressor and made an attack on
Floyd Shifflett and the defendant, Lawrence Dean, in
attempting to break up any fight or scuffle between
Taylor and Shifflett, tried to separate the two,
whereupon Taylor struck the said Lewrence Dean, and that
the said Lawrence Dean reasonably apprehended bodily
harm, that then he had the right to use such force as

he reasonably deemed necessary to protect himself,

(Marked on ma8rgin) Refused

(Signed by Court's
initials).







INSTRUCTION NO. X .

The Court instructs the Jury that a
reasonable doubt is one that excludes every

reasonable hypothesis except that of guilt.

(Markea)Refused '

(Signed by the
Court's initials).

defining
(Added below): Court discourages , reasonsble ,

would be confusing






INSTRUCTION NO. Y

The Court instruects the jury that if they
believe from the evidence in this case that H.E.Taylor
was the aggressor and that Floyd Shifflett reasonably
apprehended bodily harm, that he had the right to use such
force as was necessary to protect himself, and if you be-
lieve that the said Shifflett used only such force as he
reasonably deemed necessary to protect himself, then you
should find him not guilty, unless the Jury believe

beyond a reasonable doubt that thereafter Floyd Shifflett
aided and abetted Lawrence Dean in assaulting H.E.Taylor,

(Marked) Refused
no evidence

(Signed by the
Court's initials).






Covy of" Commonwealth's Ex, 1."

My name is John Crawford. I am 23 years old. I am married
and have one child one year old. I live at Elkton above
Merck's plant.

On Thursday, April 29, 1948, John Duff and Tom Bailey
came to my house to search mé for whiskey. Someone had
turned me in for having whiskey. I told them I didn't have
any. They asked me 1f I knew Floyd Shifflett and Lawrence
Dean. They asked me if I would help them catch them. I
told them I would help them and they said they would bring
a man in. I planned to take the man around rriday night to
try to buy whiskey. I didn't go Friday night because I
was afraid of Floyd and Lawrence. They are two rough guys.
I used the fact that my wife was sick as an excuse. I
thought Bailey and Duff would say something to Floyd and
Lawrence about it and they would come up and beat me up.

Saturday night about 7:30, Taylor and I went down
town in Elkton and met Vean. I asked him if he had anything
to drink. He looked around and asked where Millard was,

I toldvhim Millard had gone around back. He said he didn't
have anything but to go get in his car and told us where

it was, We got in back‘seat of car and in a few minutes
Lawrence Dean came to his car with Harry Lamb. Harry Lamb
drove out of Elkton up to Perry Bailey's servic¢e station.
When we got there, Floyd Shifflett was talking to some man
in a 1934 or 1935 one-seated Ckevrolet. He left that car and
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we all got out of Dean's car. Taylor was standing up beside
the building with his hands in the pockets of his pants and
one foot against the bullding. Lawrence and Floyd started to
scuffle about ten feet from where Thylor was standing and
played around to where he was. I was in the store buying
a pack of cligarettes. When I came out, Floyd Shifflett and
Taylor had their arms buckled around one another. Lawrence
Dean came up and pulled Taylor away by the neck. Then
Lawrence and Taylor went down and Lawrence got on top and
started beating Taylor. Taylor had his faceturned down toward
ground to keep him from hitting him in the face so much. I
tried to pull Lawrence off Taylor. I got him by the arm.
Floyd helped-=I'm pretty sure it was Floyd-eget Taylor
and Lawrence apart. Taylor and I ran on down the road when
we heard some one coming. We walked to‘Elkton and then
went on to John Duff's house to get Taylor cleaned up.

After I got back to Elkton, I went to the bowling alley,
and Lawrence Dean came up to me, he told me laylor was a

tough guy and had given him a black eye. He asked me who

he was and if he was kin to Taylor in Elkton. He knew who he was

because I had told him on Saturday morning before the fight
between 9:00 and 11:00 o'clock,that”I was comihg down with
revenue man to try to buy some whiskey. He sald that was a
dirty thing to do==try to catch people. He didn't make any
statement at that time as to what he was going to do. i

told him because I was afraid he would beat me up. He said






never did tell Floyd about it; but Lawrence must have told him
because Floyd came up to me Saturday about noon and asked me about
it. Floyd t0ld me if I couldn't find him around town that
night, to bring Taylor up to his house. |
Lawrence Dean end Floyd Shifflett came up to my house
yesterday to see me. They told me if I didn't tell the
tale the way they told me to, they'd do something--I don't
know just what they said. They told me to say that Taylor
had called Floyd a "dirty son-of-a-bitch" and that had started
the fighting. They also said to say that Taylor had tried
to kick Lawrence in the pri%ates when while they were
fighting. I didn't tell them I would or wouldn't teil their
tales. Floyd also said to tell that when they had their
arms buckled around one another that Taylor was trying to
search him. I know Guy Monger but I didn't see him around
that night. He didn't try to separate the fighters if he was
there because I would have seen him if he had tried to do
that. Lawrence Shifflett was a byestander while the fight
was gding on.
I didn't know they had any plans to give Taylor a
going over but I thought maybte they were going to get into
it somewhere. I didn't know a fight was going to start at
the time I went in and bought a pack of cigarettes from Perry.
At the time I talked to Floyd Shifflett Saturday about
noon, he said he didn't have any whiskey for themman but he had
something in a package. Neither Lawrence or Floyd made any

other threats about‘the man. They must have planned where to
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meet, and I believe that while we were in the car Saturday night
waiting for Lawrence, that he contacted Floyd, because Floyd
was already at the service station *hen we got there., They
‘hang around that filling station ell the time--Perry is a
good friend of theirs--he doesn't care what they do.

I didn't tell anybody except Lawrence and Fléyd that
a revenue man was going to be with me. My wife didn't
know it until afterwards. They didn't promise me any money
for my information.

When I talked to Floyd Shifflett on Saturday about
noon, I told him that I could meke $35 of $40 a week by giving
the revenue sgents informetion and helping to buy whiskey
from bootlez'gers.

I made the foregoing statement voluntarily and have been
informed that the statements therein can be used against me in
a criminal prosecution.

Given under my hand this 4th day of May, 1948.

(Signea) . John Elmer Crawford

Subseribed and sworn to before me by John E.Crawford, this

4th day of May, 1948.
(Signed) Vi L,.St e

' Notary Public
My commission expires November 3,1951.

(Each of the four pages from which this was copied
contain, on right-hend mergin,the initials J E c
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(Copy of "Ex. 1 of Defendants.")

John E.Crawford. 2 3
Elxton, Va Box 285
Wife - 1 child - girl (1) -

Friday Night - Met Taylor with Duff & Balley - going to‘z
Elkton 2 Port Republic agreed to pay me $2.09— FOR O K

Taylor for Cup of whiskey «
On Thursday - #greed with Bailey -to do the work.

Did not work friday Night as wife was sick = Made date for
Sat nite -

Abt 7:30 :
Met Taylor Sat nite in Bailey car with Baily & his wife .

Bailey left and Taylor and I came to Elk with Lawrance Deane.
Asked L D for whisky said would take us up road to find some
ot in bis ser by B B with Taylor Lew.D: Narry Lamh
rode around back to Baileys ¥Taylor & me in Back - All got
out - F. S talked to somebody - F S & Dean got to scuffing -
not mad

Went in Store for cigaretts When I came out Taylor & F S
were scufling ¢+ L D ran up & got Taylor around neck and started
fighting ¢ DBoth Went down L . D on Top. Hit him 2 times. I
tried to pull Lawrence D off & F S helped me } s, Taylor
got up and we went on road rumning - 1ooked Back & thought
Deane after .us ran abt 50 yd went into field - Came to

Dufft
Elkton. ‘‘ent to Duffs home Washed . Came back to Elkton_ I

(The part copied ab -
iet gaper, %n.penéﬁf.ras on two pages of ruled tab 176
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(Continuation of copy of "Ex, 1 of Defendants.",-the part
on third and last page of ruled tablet paper,also in pencil.)
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(Corner of
paper
torn). F Shiflett
2 L - Place
in Elkton

3 L - Deane

1. Ray (?) Lawson 0 Port Republic
2., Bill Via

L in Bowlig ally
Saw— D after fight, ’5

Did not see any of them after this Sat nite -
Did not see any of them on Sunday .

Monday - F. & L came to my house = Did you know that

was revenue Man - I denlied I knew him -
C & g (?) Construction (Written with the paper turned
to one side, so that these
Alex

five words did not coincide
with the lines of the ruled
paper).

(The pencil marks on the copy are an effort to repre- 177

gent the punctuation used on original and the way
g capital letter or something else was marked out).






Commonwealth's Ex, 1.
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My name is John Crawford. I am 23 years old. I am married
and have one child one year old. I live at Elkton above
Merck's plant.

On Thursday, April 29, 1948, John Duff and Tom Bailley
came to my house to search me for whiskey. Someone had
turned me in for having whiskey. I told them I didn't have
any. They asked me if I knew Floyd Shifflett and Lawrence
Deen. They asked me if I would help them cateh them., I
to0ld them I would help them and they said they would bring
a man in. I planned to teke the man around Friday ﬁisht to
try to buy whiskey. I didn't go Friday night because I
was afraid of Floyd and Lawrence. They are two rough guys.
I used the faot that my wife was sick as an excuse. I
thought Bailey and Duff would say something to Floyd and
Lawrence about it and they would come up and beat me wup.

Saturday night about 7:30, Taylor and I went down
town in Elkton and met Vean., I asked him if he had anything
to drink., He looked around and asked where Millard was.

I told him Millard had gone around baok; He sald he didn't
have anything but to go get im his car and told us where

it was, We got in back seat of car and in a few minutes
Lawrence Dean ceme to his car with Harry Lamb. Harry Lemb
drove out of Elkton up to Perry Bailey's service station.
When we got there, Floyd Shifflett was talking to some men
in a 1934 or 1935 one-seated Chevrolet. He left that car and
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we all got out of Dean's cer. Taylor was standing up beside
the building with his hands in the pockets of his pants and
one foot against the bullding. ' Lawrence and Floyd started to
souffle about ten feet from where Thylor was standing and
played around to where he was, I was in the store buying
a pack of cigarettes. When I came out, Floyd Shifflett and
Taylor had their arms buckled around one another. Lawrence
Dean came up and pulled Taylor away by the neck. Then
Lawrenoce and Taylor went down and Lawrence got on top and
started beating Taylor. Taylor had his faeeturned down toward
ground to keep him from hitting him in the faci 80 much. X
tried to pull Lawrence off Taylor. I got him by the amm.
Floyd helped--I'm pretty sure it was Floyd--get Taylor
and Lawremce apart. Taylor and I ran on down the road when
we heard some one coming. We walked to Elkton and then
went on to John Duff's house to get Taylor cleaned up.

After I got back to Elkton, I went to the bowliné elley,
and Lawrence Dean came up to me, he told me Taylor was a
tough guy and had given him a black eye. He asked me who
he was and if he was kin to Teylor in Elkton. He knew who he was
because I had told him on Saturday morning before the fight
between 9:00 and 11500 o'clock,that I was comihg down with
revenue man to try to buy some whiskey. He said that was a
dirty thing to do--try to catech pqoplo.' He didn't meke any
statement at that time as to what he was going to do. I
t0ld him beceuse I was afreid he wonld beat me ﬁp. He said
Beld.see-hin_that.aightwhen.l broughinin_(Taylor) down, I
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never d4id tell Floyd asbout it, dut Lawronoe'nuat'have told him
because Floyd came up to me Saturday about noon and aakod:mo abou!
it. Floyad told me 1r I couldn't f£ind him around town that
night, to bring Taylor up to his houss,
Lawrence Dean and Floyd Shifflett came up to my house
yesterday to see me. They told me if I d1dn't tell the
tale the way they told me to, they'd do something--I don't
know just what they said. They told me to say that Taylor
had called Floyd a "dirty aon—of—afbiteh" and that had started
the fighting. They also said to say that Taylor had tiled
to kipk Lawrence in the privates when while they were
fighting. I 4idn't tell them I would or wouldn't tell their
tales, Floyd also said to tell that when they hsd their
arms buckled around one another that Taylor was trying to
search him. I know Guy Monger but I didn't see him around
that night. He didn't try to sopara‘c the fighters if he was
thers because I would have seen him if he hed tried to do
that, Lewrence Shifflett was a by-astander while the fight
was going on.
I 414n't know they had any plans to give Taylor a
going over but I thought mayhbe they were going to get into
it somewhere, I didn't know a fight was going to start at
the time I went im and bought a pack of cigarettes from Perry.
At the time I talked to Floyd Shifflett Saturday sbout
noon, he sald he d1d4n't have any whiskey for themman but he had
something in a package. Neither Lawrence or Floyd made any

other threats about the man. They must have planmned where to
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meet, and I believe that while we were in the car Saturday night
waiting for Lawrence, that he contacted Floyd, because Floyd
was already at the service station when we got there. They
hang around that fiilinshatatioi all the time~-Perry is a
good friend of theirs--he doesn't care what they. do,
I didn't tell anybody except Law:encs and Floyd that
a revenue man was going to be with me, My wire’didn't}
know it until afterwerds, They didn't promise me any money
for my information. '
When I talked to Floyd Shifflett on Saturday about
noon, I told him that I could make $35 or $40 a week by giving
the ravohua sgents information and helping to buy whiskey

from bootleggers,’

I made the foregoing atatement voluntarily and have been
informed that the statements therein csmn be used sgainst me in
a oriminal prosecution.

Given under my hand this 4th day of May, 1948.

(Signed) . John Elmer Orawford

Subseribed and sworn to before me by John E.Crawford, this

4th day of Mey, 1948,
' (sisneﬂ_ﬂmmw__
: otary Publie

My oommissicn expires November 3,1951.

(Eagh of the four psges from which this wss copled
contain, on right-hand mergin,t'e initials J E C ),
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(Copy of "Ex, 1 of Defendants,”)

o o - - - - - - - - - - -

John E.Crawford. 2 3
Elkton, Va Box 285
Wife - 1 child - girl (1)

Friday Night - Met Taylor with Duff & Bailey - soins to %
Elkton 2 Port Republic agreed to pay me $2,.°2_ ForR O K .
Taylor for Cup of whiskey =~

On Thursday - sgreed with Balley -to do the work.

Did not work ¥ridey Night as wife was sick - Made date for
Sat nite -

Abt 7:30
Met Taylor Sat nite in Beiley car with Baily & his wife .

Bailey left and Taylor and I came to Elk with Lawrence Deane,
Asked L D for whisky said would take us up road to find some
Got in his car by R R with Taylor Law.D. Harry Lamb
rode around back to Baileys ¥ Taylor & me in Back - All got
out - F. 8 talked to somebody - ¥ S & Dean got to scuffing -
not mad

ient in Store for cigaretts '“hen I came out Taylor & F 8
were socufling v L D ran up & got Tnylo; around neck and started
fighting « Both Went down L . D on Top, Hit him 2 times. I
tried to pull Lawrence D off & F S helped me ¢ L,)'S. Taylor
got up and we went on road running - léokea Back & thought
Deane after .us ran abt 50 yd went into field - Came tgurr
Elkton. "ent to Duffs home iashed . Came basck to Elkton. I
got out.
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(fgg ngt ooBéed abee was on two pagea of ruled tab- 176







(Continuation of copy of "Ex, 1 of Defendants.",-the part
on third and last page of ruled tablet paper,slso in peneil.)
(c ??1;1‘!1!!!!‘!!li&!!l!!!tli!lt!3‘!1!1!!l!lll!ll%!ﬁi!ll‘li!
orner o | :

paper
torn).  F Shiflett R
5 2 * ) Place
% in Elkton
3 L - Deane )
1. Ray (7) Lawson | _ Port Republic
2. Bi1l Via (
Lo in Bowlig ally
caw D after fight, fa

Did not see any of them after this Sat nite -
Did not see any of them on Sunday .

Mopday - F. & L came to my house - Did you know that

was revenue ¥an - I denied I knew him -

C & g (?) Construction (Written with the paper turned
to one side, so that these
——Am-—
five worde d4id not coinecide
with the lines of the ruled

paper),

(The peneil marks on the co 177
DY &re &n effort to re -

sent the punetuation used on originel and the wagr.

a capital letter or something else was marked out).
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STATE OF VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, to-wit:

. IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF SAID COUNTY:

E The grand jurors of the State of Virginia, in and for
the body of the County of Rockingham and now attending the
Circuit Court of said County, at its April Term, 1948, upon
their oaths do present that LAWRENCE DEAN and FLOYD SHIFFLETT,

i
on or about the 1lst day of May, 1948, in the County of Rockingham,
§ did unlawfully and feloniously( 3 ederdte
gg -together for the purpose of eommittimy an assault and-bodily tmiury
; 5‘3 . upon H. E. Tayler, with intent, him, the said ¥+ B, Ta¥Ior Yo maim,
g\ 5 disfigure, disable or kill, and in pursuance of said conspiracy
%Qand confederation, they, the said Lawrence Dean ard Floyd Shifflett,
\\ h—mjupon(tha_iai@ﬁ. E. Taylor «@-h!jmake an assault and him the
said H. E. Taylor unlawfully, feloniously and maliciously did beat
and wound with their fists and cause him bodily injury; to-wit a
fractured nose, bruises and lacerations, with intent him, the

sald H. E. Taylor, then and there to maim, disfigure, dissble or

kill, against the peace and dignity of the Commonwealth of Virginia.

This indictment 1s found upon the testimony of H. E.
Taylor and John E. Crawford, witnesses sworn in Court and sent

before the grand Jury to give evidence.
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COMMONWEALTH
V. )  INDICTMENT

LAWRENCE DEAN and
FLOYD SHIFFLETT

Felony .
April Term, 1948

A True Bill: M7 ~17-174¢ |
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Witnesses:®

1l H. E. Taylor
2. John E. Crawford
fé?ééLJ¥fng4#ﬁ{4’u#£2£;

« B ‘
LR L /( rfﬁﬁ?ﬁ

George D. Conrad
Commonwealth's Attorney
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AMENDED INDICTMENT

STATE OF VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, to-wit:

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF SAID COUNTY:

THe grand jurors of the State of Virginia, in and for
the body of the County of Rockingham and now attending the
Circuit Court of said County, at its April Term, 1948, upon
their oaths do present that LAWRENCE DEAN and FLOYD SHIFFLETT,
on or about the lst day of May, 1948, in the County of Rockiﬁgham,
did unlawfully and feloniously upon H. E. Taylor make an assault
and him the said H. E., Taylor unlawfully, feloniously and
maliciously did beat and wound with their fists and cause him
bodily injury; to-wit, a fractured nose, brulses and lacerations,
with intent him, the said H. E. Taylor, then and there to maim,
disfigure, disable or kill, agalinst the peace and dignity of the

Commonwealth of Virginia.

This Indictment 1s found upon the testimony of H. E.
Taylor and John E. Crawford, witnesses sworn in Court and sent

before the grand jury to give evidence.






IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA:

COMMONWEALTH

V. CHARGE TO JURY
FLOYD SHIFFLETT

If you find the accused, Floyd Shifflett, guilty of
wounding H, E. Taylor or causing him bodily injury, by any means,
with malicious intent, as charged in the indictment, you will say
so and fix his punishment by confinement in the penitentiary for
a period of not less than one year nor more than ten years.

If you do not find him guilty of malicious wounding or
malicious bodily injury, as charged in the indictment, but find
hiﬁ guilty of unlawful wounding or unlawful bodily injury, as
therein charged, you will say so and fix his punishment by con-
finement in the penitentiary for a period of nqﬁ less than one
year nor more than five years, or, in your discretion, by con-
finement in jall not exceeding twelve months and by a fine not
exceedling five hundred dollars.

If you do not find him gullty of either of the felonies
aforesald, but find him gﬁilty of assault and battery, as further
charged in tﬁe indictment, then you will say so and fix his
punishment by confinement in jall for a peribd not exceeding twelve
months, or by a fine not exceeding five -hundred dollars, or by

both such fine and imprisonment.

If you find him not gullty, you will say so and no more.






IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA:

COMMONWEAT, TH.
V. ' CHARGE TO JURY
FLOYD SHIFFLETT

If you find the accused, Floyd Shifflett, guilty of
wounding H. E. Taylor or causing him bodily injury, by any means,
with malicious intent, as charged in the indictment, you will say
so and fix his punishment by confinement in the penitentiary for
a period of not less than one year nor more than ten years.

If you do not find him guilty of malicious wounding or
malicious bodily injury, as charged in the indictment, but find
him guilty of unlawful wounding or unlawful bodily injury, as
therein charged, you will say so and fix his punishment by con-
finement in the penitentiary for a period of not less than one
year nor more than five years, or, in your discretion, by con-
finement in jail not exceeding twelve months and by a fine not
exceeding five hurdred dollars.

If you do not find him guilty of either of the felonies
aforesald, but find him guilty of assault and battery, as further
charged in the indictment, then you will say so and fix his
punishment by confinement in Jail for a period not exceeding twelve
months, or by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars, or by

both such fine and imprisonment.

If you find him not guilty, you will say so and no more.






IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, VIRGINIA:

COMMONWEALTH

L CHARGE TO JURY
LAWRENCE DEAN

If you find the accused, Lawrence Dean, guilty of
wounding H. E. Taylor or causing him bodily injury, by any means,
with malicious intent, as charged in the indictment, you will say
so and fix his punishment by confinement in the penitentiary for
a period of not less than one year nor more than ten years.

If you do not find him guilty of malicious wounding or
malicious bodily injury, as charged in the indictment, but find
him gullty of unlawful wounding or unlawful bodily injury, as
therein charged, you will say so and fix his punishment by con-
finement in the penitentiary for a period of not less than one
year nor more then five years, or, in your discretion, by con-
finement in Jail not exceeding twelve mbonths and by a fine not

7/

exceeding five hundred dollars.

If you do not find him gullty of elther of the felonles
aforesaid, but find him guilty of assault and battery, as further
charged in the indictment, then you will say so and fix his
punishment by confinement in jall for a perlod not exceeding twelve
months, or by a fine not exceeding five hundred dollars, or by
both such fine and imprisonment.

If you find him not guilty, you will say so and no more.
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ERA)

CHARLES P. CHEW
Executive Secretary

RICHARD W. COPELAND
Director
RALPH E. WILKINS
JAMES W. PHILLIPS

PAROLE BOARD
RICHMOND

Jamary 3, 1950

Honorable Hamilton Hawes
Judge, Twenty-Fifth Judicial Circuit
Luray, Virginia

Dear Judge Hawes:

In Re: Lawrence Dean

57618

We are building up & case file on the above-named inmate. The
materials in this file will be used by the Division of Corrections
and by the Parocle Board. The following information will serve to
identify this person.

Offense: Felonious Assault

Court: Rockingham County Circuit
Date of Sentence: 10-21-49

Sentence Imposed: 2 yrs; and 6 months

This man will not be considered for parole until he has served one-
fourth of his sentence. Any information you should like to give re-
garding this case will be most helpful. 1If you care to recommend for
or against parole in this case, that recommendation would be welcomed.
Your usual splendid cooperation will be sincerely appreciated.

We will not send you these letters on persons sentenced to but one
year imprisonment.

With kindest personal regards, I am
Sincerely yours,

| perarpotet

- Richard W. Copeland
Director of Parole
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CHARLES P. CHEW
Executive Secretary
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RICHARD W. COPELAND
Director
RALPH E. WILKINS
JAMES W. PHILLIPS

PAROLE BOARD

RICHMOND
January 3, 1950

Honorable Hamilton Hawes
Judge, Twenty-Fifth Judicial Circuit
Luray, Virginia

Dear Judge Hawes:

In Re: Floyd Shifflett
57617

We are building up a case file on the above-named inmate. The
materials in this file will be used by the Division of Corrections
and by the Parole Board. The following information will serve to
identify this person.

Offense: Felonious Assault

Court': Rockingham County Circuit

Date of Sentence: 10-21-49

Sentence Imposed: 2 yrs; 6 mons.,
This man will not be considered for parole until he has served one-
fourth of his sentence. Any information you should like to give re-
garding this case will be most helpful. 1If you care to recommend for
or against parole in this case, that recommendation would be welcomed.

Your usual splendid cooperation will be sincerely appreciated.

We will not send you these letters on persons sentenced to but one
year imprisonment.

With kindest personal regards, I am
Sincerely yours,
Richard W. Copéland
Director of Parole

mc






STATE OF VIRGINIA,
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM, To-Wit:

I, J. Robert Switzer, Clerk of the Circuit
Court of Rockingham County, Virginia, do hereby certify
that the foregoing is & true transcript of the record
in the case of Commonwealth of Virginia vs. Lawrence
DPean and Flioyd Shifflett, on an indictment for a

felony.

Given under my hand this 2lst day of Septem-
ber, 1948.

, Clerk.

Transcript Fee. §_ .
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March 25, 1949

Re: Lawrence [Dean and Floyd
Ehifflett v. Commonwesalth
Record Ro. 3513

Mr. M. B. Watts, Clerk

Bupreme Court of Appeals of Virginias

Richmond 10, Virginia '

Dear Mr. Watts:

Ags reguested in your letter of March 24, 1 am sending you
herewith copies of the imstructions (granted and refused)
in the above case.

Yours very truly,
J. Robert Bwitzer, Clerk

mb '
Enclosures: Instructions 1 to é (inclusive) }
Instructions B, C, D, E, F, G granted

Instructions 21, Z, A, X, ¥ (refused)
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CHIEF JUSTICE:
EDWARD W. HUDGINS

JUSTICES
HERBERT B. GREGORY
JOHN W. EGGLESTON
C. VERNON SPRATLEY
ARCHIBALD C. BUCHANAN
ABRAM P. STAPLES
WILLIS D. MILLER

SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS M. B. WATTS

OF VIRGINIA

Richmond 10

CLERK, RICHMOND

WILLIAM W. SMALES

DEPUTY CLERK, STAUNTON

March 24, 1949

Re: Lawrence Dean and Floyd Shifflett v. Commonwealth

Record No. 3513

Mr. J. Robert Switzer, Clerk
Circult Court of Rockingham County
Harrisonburg, Virginia

Dear Mr. Swlitzer:

I received from you a few days
ago two original exhibits filed in the case of
Dean and Shifflett v. Commonwealth which you
kindly sent me at my request.

. The court thought possibly that
included with these exhiblts would be some
instructions which were not made a part of the
record as transcribed. 7You will find that these
instructions are referred to on page 145 of the
printed record (a copy of which you have.)

I will be obliged if you will
examine the papers on file in connection with
this case and if there are any copies of these
instructlons with the papers, kindly send them
to me for the examlnation of the court,

Yours very truly,

MBW:1lch Clerk
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VIRGINIA:
Lfg'éézéz;%www %ﬁim/g/ﬂ&@%ﬁaﬂé/éﬁylufﬁézié%wéhgzémﬁy 5@&&@@3}
on lhe %{I/ %e%c/l/mmu/m Monday bhe 25th day o/ April, 1949,

Lawrence Dean and Floyd Shifflett, Plaintiffs 1n error,
against Record No, 3513
Commonwealth of Virginia, ' Defendant in error.

Upon a writ of error and supersedeas to ajjudgment
rendered by the Circuit Court of Rockingham county on
the 23rd day of June, 1948,

This day came again the parties, by counsel, and the court having
maturely considered the transcript of the record of the Jjudgment afore-
said and arguments of counsel, is of opinion, for reasons stated in writ-
ing and filed with the record, that there is error in the judgment com-
plained of. It is therefore adjudged and ordered that the said judgment

be reversed and annulled, the verdict of the jury set aside, and the case

is remanded to the said circult court for a new trial in accordance with the

views expressed in the sald written opinion of this court.

forthwith
Which is ordered to be/certified to the said eircult court.
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INSTRUCTION NO. G.

IRIEZRURIXANXRAIXEX

The Court instructz the Jjury that malice
is one of the elements of malicious assault and that
the burden 1s upon the Commonwealth to prove malice

beyond a reasonab le doubt, in order to convict either

of the defendants of malicious assault.
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INSTRUCTION NO. //

The Court instructs the jury that the burden
resting upon the Commonwealth to prove the accused guilty
beyond all reasonable doubt of an offense and every
material element thereof, charged against the accused,
does not mean that it 1s necessary for the Commonwealth
to estaﬁlish the gullt of the gccused to an absolute
certalnty or beyond all possibility of mistake or to do
more than satisfy the jury that upon the evidence as a
whole the accused 1s gulilty thereof beyond all reasonable

doubt.
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INSTRUCTION NO. Z

The Court instructs the jury that under the indictment
in this case, if warranted by the evidence, you may find one of
the four following verdicts, to-wit: (1) Malicious wounding or
injury; (2) Unlawful wounding or injury; (3) Assault and battery;
(4) Not guilty.

You are further instructed that malicious wounding or
injury is committed when one person unlawfully, wilfully, feloniously
and maliciously wounds or causes bodlly injury to another, intending
-thereby either to maim, disfigure, disable or kill such other.
Unlawful wounding is commlitted when one person wounds or causes
bodily injury to another unlawfully, wilfully, and feloniously,
but not maliciouély, intending thereby either to maim, disfigure,
disable of kill such other. Assault and battery is any physical

injury done to another in an angry, rude or insolent manner.






INSTRUCTION NO. Féz

The Court instructs the Jury that m<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>